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CoLONEL, PERCEVALL

Dee. 9. At 28, Chester-street, aged 71,
Alexander Perceval, Esq., of Temple-house,
Serjeant-at-Arms of the House of Lords.

Colonel Perceval was the only surviving
child of the Rev. Philip Perceval, of Tem-
ple-house, and Mary Carroll, a near rela-
tive of Sir W. F. Carroll, Lieut.-Governor
of Greenwich Hospital. He was born Feb.
10,1787, and was educated at Trinity Col-
lege, Dublin, where he graduated as A.M.
On Feb. 11, 1808, having scarcely attained
his majority, he married Jane Anne, daugh-
ter of Colonel I/Estrange, of Moystown.
Residing on his ample estate, he entered
into all the active duties of a country gen-
tleman, served the office of a Justice of the
Peace, and accepted a commission in the
Sligo Militia, a regiment which in due
time he rose to command. Descended of
a noble family, and possessed of great in-
fluence, he naturally looked to enter Par-
liament, and was elected member for his
native county in 1831, and continued to
represent it during ten years; he was an
earnest and zealous Conservative, and gave
an honest vote and support to all the great
measores of his party. On June 183, 1834,
he had the honour of receiving the degree
of D.C.L. at the installation of the Duke
of Wellington as Chancellor of the Uni-
versity of Oxford. His important services
were not overlooked, and in 1835 he was
nominated Treasurer of the Ordnance.
He also served some time the office of a
Lord of the Treasury. He was Treasurer
of the Orange Association of Ireland ; and
when the Government were anxious, for
the sake of peace, that it should cease to
exist, with sound good sense and feeling he
furthered that object, and was successful
in its attainment. In 1841 he vacated
his seat for the appointment which he
held up to the period of his decease, on
the resignation of Admiral Sir George
Seymour. He was a highly-educated gen-
tleman, of courteous manners, full of Irish
humour and well-told anecdote, having
resided much on the Continent, as well as
taking his part in stirring events of public
life. His temper was one of deep un-
feigned devotion, and under the deep afilic-
tion of the loss of his wife, Jan. 20, 1847,
he displayed a humble patient resignation ;
the acute suffering consequent on two at-
tacks of paralysis he bore with meekness ;
he sank gradually, without pain, however,
for some months, peaceful and ecalm, en-
deared to a large circle of friends, and
deeply lamented by his family.

THE VEN. ARCHDEACON WILLIAMS,
Dec. 27. At Bushey-heath, Herts., the
Ven. John Williams, Archdeacon of Car-
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digan, and late Rector of the Edinburgh
Academy, Canon of St. David’s, Prebend
of Brecon.

The Archdeacon was born in 1792, at
Ystradmeirig, in Cardiganshire, and edu-
cated in his boyhood by his father, the
Rev. John Williams, vicar of that parish,
He went for a few months to Ludlow
School, where he obtained a scholarship,
and entering Balliol College, Oxford, was
placed, on taking his degree, in the first
class with four others, of whom one was
the celebrated Dr. Arnold. Like the latter,
the Archdeacon chose the life of a public
teacher as his sphere of usefulness—a
sphere for which his great hodily strength,
his energy, his wonderful faculty of im-
parting knowledge, and his unvarying
equanimity of temper peculiarly fitted
him. THe was for two years a master in
Winchester College under the well-known
Dr. Gabell, and subsequently for four
years with Dr. Richards at Hyde Abbey
School. Recalled to his own country by
the gift of the living of Lampeter, which
was presented to him by Dr. Burgess, the
Bishop of St. David’s, he remained there
until, by the advice of his friend, Sir
Walter Scott, he became a candidate for
the rectorship of the Edinburgh Academy,
a new school about to be opened for high
classical education in Edinburgh. To this
honourable position he was elected unani-
mously, and for upwards of twenty years
his success as a teacher was proved by the
eminence of his pupils, who, commencing
with his first Dux, the present Bishop of
London, fill so many honoured places in
Scotland and England. Living in Scot-
land in the palmiest days of Edinburgh
society, he was one of a literary set in
which, at various times among many
names of note we find those of Sir Walter
Secott, Maculloch, John Gibson Lockhart,
Sir Thomas Dick Lauder, Lord Cockburn,
Lord Jeffries, Professor Wilson, and Col,
Mure. On Sir Walter Scott’s death the
Archdeacon read the burial service over
his remains at Dryburgh Abbey. From
Edinburgh he returned to his native land,
and there saw formed under his eyes, and
endowed by the munificence of a fellow-
countryman, an institution for the classical
education of those of his countrymen whose
means would not permit them to enter
one of the public schools of England. In
the world of letters he was known as a
Greek scholar of European reputation, and
as the author of several works of deep
research and sound scholarship, among
which we may name “ Homerus,” ¢ Go-
mer,” “Life of Julius Caesar,”’ « Life of
Alexander the Great,” “ Geography of
Ancient Asia,” and essays philosophical,
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philological, ethmological, theological, and
archzological. To the cause of Welch
history and archzology, of which he was
always the most able and successful expo-
nent, he is a most irreparable loss. The
peculiar feature of his character was his
ardent love of his fatherland, of its people,
its language, customs, and traditions. No
one ever laboured more zealously than he,
not merely for the welfare, but for the
honour of Wales.

Rev. Cmas. Mavo, B.D,, F.R.S,, F.S.A.

TaE Rev. Chas. Mayo was the youngest
son of the late Rev. Herbert Mayo, D.D.,
Rector of St. George’s-in-the-East, Mid-
dlesex, who was much respected as being
an active and diligent incumbent of that
important and populous parish. He was
born 24th of March, 1767, and died 10th
of December, 1858, and had therefore at-
tained the advanced age of 91. He was
educated at Merchant Taylors’ School, and
having acquitted himself there with great
credit, was appointed a probationary Scho-
lar, and eventually a Fellow, on that noble
foundation, at St. John’s College, Oxford.
Here he applied himself with becoming
zeal to his academical studies, and evinced
considerable talent in the acquisition of
the knowledge of the Anglo-Saxon lan-
guage, and was the first who held that
professorship in the University. In 1801
he married the youngest daughter of Jas.
Landon, Esq., of Cheshunt, a lady much
beloved for her amiable and accomplished
mind, with whom he had the happiness to
be united for the lengthened period of
upwards of fifty years. He wus appointed
one of the Whitehall Preachers, and he
was, unsolicited, made a Fellow of the
Royal Society,and subsequently was elected
a Kellow of the Society of Antiguaries.
He was for upwards of thirty years Morn-
ing Preacher at Highgate Chapel ; and on
the conclusion of his ministry there, when
the new church was built, he contributed
the painted glass which now adorns the
beautiful altar-window in that church.
He was for many years examiner of Mer-
chant Taylors’ School. In 1825 he suc-
ceeded to an old family estate at Cheshunt,
Herts.,, which he became entitled to as
descendant from the Shaw family, and
which had been held under the crown by
Cardinal Wolsey as one of his prineely
residences, the Hall, still existing, having
been built in the same style as Wolsey’s
palace of Hampton Court. But he always
observed that his highest distinction was
his connexion with Merchant Taylors’
School, and the position which he thereby
acquired at Oxford, which so amply pro-

Rev. Chas. Mayo, B.D., F.R.S., F.S.4.
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vided for his maintenance at College, and
which would have rendered him inde-
pendent of any other provision in after
life if he had continued a member of the
foundation. His amiable and benevolent
manners obtained for him the esteem and
regard of his numerous friends, by whom
he was considered a Christian gentleman ;
and his generosity and liberality to the
poor will cause the remembrance of him to
be long affectionately cherished in the
neighbourhood in which he has so long
resided. And in his declining days, when
the closing scene of life approached, he was
enabled to exercise a renewed faith in that
Divine Redeemer in whom he confided as
“the Saviour of poor sinners.”

Tur Rev. A. MAcoNocHIE Ross.

Dee. 8. At the School-house of Clon-
tarf, near Dublin, Alexander Maconochie
Ross, A.M.

The deceased was a native of Ross-shire,
N.B, and was educated for the Church,
having been, we believe, licensed by the
United Presbyterian body. He officiated
with much approbation as private tutor
in several respectable families, and held
for some time the situation of parochial
gchoolmaster of Gairloch, in his native
county. Removing to England he en-
tered the HEstablished Church, and was
called into Ireland, where, from his abi-
lity as a teacher, he was found eminently
useful in that capacity among the people
of some of the districts most educationally
destitute. He was some years since re-
moved from Galway to Clontarf, where, in
the prime of life, he terminated his useful
labours, to the great regret of all to whom
his open-hearted and kind disposition were
known, leaving a widow and young family.

He published a Gaélic translation of
Fletcher’s “ New Birth,” and contributed
some papers to the periodicals in that
language. He was an ingenious etymolo-
gist, and presented to the Gaélic Society
of London a MS. volume, shewing, by
ample exemplification, the affinity of the
Gaélic and Welsh languages, with several
translations of unpublished poems.

Joux Youna Caw, Esq, F.S.A., F.R.S.

Oct. 22. At his residence, Fountain-
villa, Cheetham-hill, near Manchester, aged
48, John Young Caw, F.S.A., F.R.S.

Mer. Caw was a native of Perth, in Scot-
land, and was educated at St. Andrews,
and subsequently at Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, where he spent upwards of two
years, with the view of entering Holy
Orders. Having, however, relinquished



